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" Place: Hyderabad

NOTICE OF SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

To :
The Members of
Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Members of

Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited [CIN; U45209TG2010PLCO68742} will be held gn 22™

- September, 2017 at 10.20 AM at the Registered office of the Company Situated at Madhucon

House, Plot No.1129/A, Road No.36, lubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500 023 to transact the
following business: '

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements in IND AS format of
-the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017, together with the report of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

' 2 To appoint Director in place of Sri.Srinivasa Rao Kamma, who retires by rotation and
.. being eligible, offers himself for reappointment,

coas Appointment nfhuditnrs.-

. To cunmder am:l n"‘ thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following
' r‘esolutmn as an Drdman.r res-::-]utic:n x

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the pravisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under Ghoshal &

. Ghoshal, Chartered Accountants, Flat No.204, Anand Plaza, Opp. R.R District Collectorate,
- Lakdikapul, Hyderabad-500 004, [Firm Regn. No. 304013E} be and are hereby appﬂlnted as

. Statutory Auditors of the Company to held office from the conclusion of this AGM, for-a
period of 5 Consecutive years until the conclusion of 12th AGM of the Company, subject to

.. ratification of appointment by members at every AGM held after this AGM, be ratified by
- .the Members at such remuneration as decided by the Buard of Directors of the Cumpanﬁ_.r in
_consultatmn wnth the Audjtors

: = By Order of the Bu_ard _

Chhapra-Hajipur Expresswav,ré _I_.irﬁitgd

E Hydearabad
A3
h P‘,
(o

Director

‘Date: 29/05/2017 .
: DIN: (0022855 -

B L e g Crwrury n, (USRI




T,EEELHELEH

. _' . .Place: Hyderabad
" Date: 20/05/2017

NOTE:
1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not he a member.

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company at any time but not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting. A proxy form is enclosed.

3, Corporate Members need to send their Authorized Representatives along with a copy of
Board resolution authorizing them to participate in the meeting. And Authorized
representative need not be a member of the company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
{Purswant to section 102{1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required by .sectinn 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act), the following explanatory

statements sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Ordinary
husmess of the accumpanwng Net:ce

- _Expla_nat't}.r',r Statement under the Provisions of Campanies Act, 2013

" Gianender & Associates, Chartered :Accountants, No 244 (Old-No %38), Angappa Naicken
. Street, 2nd Floor, Chennai-600 001 {Firm"s Regn. No: 000679S) was appointed as Statutory
. - Auditors of the Company as per- thé Companies Act, 2013 fer the Financial year 2016-2017 and
. -.as. per the- provisions of cumpames act 2012 they need to be retired at the ensurlng Annual

General meeting and Board of Directors proposed to appoint Ghoshal & Ghoshal, Chartered
Accountants, Flat No. 204, Anand Plaza, Opp. R.R District Collectorate, Lakdikapul, Hyderahad-

500 004, {Firm Regn. No.. 3I]4{.'|13E] as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from

. the conclusion of this AGM; for,a period of 5 Consecutive years until the mnclusmn af 12th

o AGM of the Company, suhject to ratification of appointment by members at every'AGM held
e -after this AGM, and the Bnard uf Dlrectclrs recommend th&lr‘ Appointments for the ﬁ.pprmfal nf
SR the Shareholders. ' R - -

" None of the Difectorskﬂelatives are interested ln the resolution.

By Order uf.:tlh_e_ Board
Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited

Director .
DHN: 00022355




Miﬁﬁﬁéﬁn
CHHAPRA-HAIIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Ta
The Members of
Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limitad.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Seventh Annual Report together with Audited
Financial Statement in IND AS format for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

1. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

- The éxtracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(2) of the Companies
- Act, 2013 {"the Act) read with Rule 212{1) of the Companies (Management and
s admlnlstratlon} Ruies 2014, in Form MGT-2 is furnished.in Annexure-1 and is attached to this

-"rep{:-rt

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

| Total Income 1,288,049,511 616,132,220
Total Expenses 1,514,345,693 928@33,8?’4
{-Profit f'Loss from Continuing. Operations 226,296,182 -312,401,654
Add: Other Comprehenslve Income ' 21,099 145,726

. '_ _Tutal Compreheuswe Income for the Period . ~228,275,083 312,255,925

. ann MEETINES

'-'.The I3-::+ar-::]I met 8 (E;ght} times durmg the financial year 2(}15 2{11? The: f-:::-ll-::-wmg are the dates

L 'nf meetlng n:r.‘:-nvened in dlfferent Quarters of the fmanmal year.

Fifst Quéi.‘t'er--. o Sewnd Quarter

| Third Quat"tei* - Fourth Quarter
Meeti 5 Date. . : Meetin | Date Meeting | Date - Meeting | Date
ngNn T g No. Na. Ne.
- 59 | 27.05.2016. ‘60 18.07.2016 62 20,10.2016 a3 20.01.2017
-1 61 | 22.00.2016 ' 64 11.02.2017
7 10.03.2017
71+ 20.03.2017




L 16 ADEQUACY DFINTERNAL FINANCIAI. CGNTRDI.

4. _RART[CULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES

The Transactions of the Company During the year 2016-17 were within the compliances under
Sec 180 and Sec 186 of the Companies Act 2013/ relevant provisions under Companies act 1956

5. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is
hereby Confirmed:

I That in the preparation of anﬁuai accaunts for the financial year ended 31st March,
2017; the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures.

Il.  That the Directors have selected Accounting Pollgies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a
~ true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, at the end of the financial

.. year.and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

ESUNL-. -Thiat the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of

' .. adequate accounting records: in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

.. Act, 2013, for.safeguarding the assets of the t'.in:ur'n;:uan!,,.r and for preventing and
_ Fdetectmg frauds and nther |rregularltles -

i "i:fur.' ' That.thE'D_irétturs have prepared the_-ann_ual .accounts for the year ended 31st
s 3_'March 2017 on a “Going Cﬂncern’f hasi;. : :

U, :.__That the dlre::turs had laid down internal f“nanmal controls to be followed by the
‘company. and that such internal financial contrﬂls are adequate and are operating

L Effectwelv

'_.Th'at"the dlre-::tai‘s had devised proper s.ysfeﬂmé"tﬂ ensure compliance with the
i provisions of all applicable Iaws and that such’ $vstem5 are- adequate and operating
: -ef—fe::twe[-,r : : : -

T —::lrnpan\_.f has structured and lmplemented a prucess Drwen frarnewnrk for Internal
- FIﬂEI‘ICEEII Cc—ntmls (“IFC”} in terms of the explanation te Sectlun 134{5}{9} of the Companies Act,

- 2!]13 The Bcard of Directors of the Company is of the ﬂplnmn that the Company has sound IFC

" fur the "y"_Ear 2{)15 2017.The Company is continuously mnnlt-::-rmg and |dent:f'ed the gaps if any,
B : plements lmprmfec{ controls wherever the Effe-::t nf such gaps would have a mater:al
“effect on the Campany’s uperatiuns ' SR




Further, Your Company has adequate system of Internal Financial Control developed by our in-
house Internal Audit team consisting of qualified and experienced accounting, costing and
technical prefessionals. The Internal Audit Team suggests various means of cost reduction and
vost contrel measures in all resources used in the Company. The Internal Financial Control
Systems and the Reports of Internal Audit will be reviewed by the Audit Committee in
consultation with the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors and experts in the field

thereafter by Board of Directors.
7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

- {ompany has entered into contracts with related parties in ordinary course of business at arms-

- {ength price during the year 2016-17 and the details of related parties stated In Schedules of
notes to Financial Statements. Further the company has already taken approvals from its
shareholders in EGM under Sec 188 of the Companies act 2013.

8. THE STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

- Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Ltd is a Special Purpose Vehicle and subsidiary of Madhucon Infra
Limited for execution and maintenance of Four Lanes of Chhapra Hajipur Section (KM 143.200 -
KM 207. 200} road project on NH-19 in the state of Bihar on Design, Bullt, Finance, Operate and

s Transfer { DBFDT} Annuity basis, on a eencessren period of 15 years.

- g, DIUIDEND

. Dur:ng the -,rear 2016-17 I‘Jam;::ann_.ur has not -earned any profit and hence not recemmended_

B dlwdend

1. mr—eamnnem A5 PER SECTION 134 (a,\ (M} THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE

8 GF COMPANIES {ACCDUNTS]' ‘RULES, 2014:
Do There was no applicable nor reqmred mfnrmatlen to be dlsrlaaed under this clause,

"% 41, RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

: ‘The Company has formulated a |:ICI|IC']|" far Rlsk management and Periedic assessmenta te__
s :jdentlfyr the risk areas are n:arrled eut I:n,.r the management and necessary actions were taken tn

ﬂf--'el:mrnate rlsk

’ 12' Feamm. ANNUAL EVALunnen

‘ ;.«.:_:.The perfermance of Directors _is. eva]uated h'-,r the Board (excluding the Director bemg o
-7 evaluated} on the following criteria. K D L

. *. Evaluation Criteria: ' : -

: - Contribution to development of strateg!,.-r and risk management

. -+ Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate governance practices.
. Independent and unblased demamns{epmtens ete, -
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13, DETAILS OF DIRECTORS APPOINTED AND RESIGNED DUJRING THE YEAR:
There were none of the Directors Appolnted/ Resigned during the year under review.
14. vIGiL MECHANISM

The company has established Vigil Mechanism for Directors / Employees to report their genuine

concerns or grievances. The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the vigil Mechanism

through the Committee. It provides for adequate safeguards against victimlzation of directars/
‘employees who avail of the mechanism. It also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the

Audit Committee. In case of repeated frivolous complaints, the suitable action will be initiated
. by the Chairman of the Audit Committes; ' '

15. COMPOSITION OF ALDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee conslsting of Board members as follows:
_ 1. 5ri. Krishnarjun Rao Vemulapalli, Directer as Chairman

. 2. 5HL.K.SrInlvasa Rao, Director as Member,

3. Sri. Réwi Kamma Diref:tar a's Member

- 16. STATUTORY AND SECRETARIAL AUD[TDRS' REPQORT:
. All the Point mentioned:in Audlt Reports were Self-Explanatory and there-are no quallf‘ca’clons

7o réservations or adverse rernarks in the Audltc-rs Report whlch reqmre any ciarlflcatlﬂn_z'

' explanatmn fr-::rn the Management
17, STATIJTDRY AUDITDRS

Elanender & Assumates Chartered Acx:-:::-untants Mo 244 (Old No 138}, Angappa. Najcken .

'Street 2nd Floor, Chennai- EGD o001, {Flrm s Regn. No: DO0679S) was appointed as Sta‘tutcr-,.r: S
. Auditors of the Cﬂmpat“l‘lf as per the Cnmpames Act, 2013 for the Financial year 2015-2016 and_ S
* as per the provisions of companles act 2013 they need to be retired at the ensuring ‘Annual

Genaral maating and Board of Dlrec‘tnrs proposed to appoint Ghoshal & Ghoshal, Chartered o
"'.-A-::-::nuntants Flat No.204, Anand Plaza, Opp. R.R District Collectorate, Lakdikapul, Hvderahad—

: '-'AGM of the Company, subject to rahf‘catmn of appcmtment by members at every AGM held iy
“after thls AGM, and the Board —::nf Dlrectﬂrs remmmend thEIr Appointments for the Apprﬂval of i

: _the Sha re hcllders

: _"x.-18 SECREI'RIALAUDITDR
.- - Shri U Survanarayana, Practl-:;mg Cnmpan-,r Secretary was appointed as Secretanal Aur.iltur uf .
: Lthe mmpany for the ﬁnam:lal ',.rear 2016-2017 and the rep-::rrt was enclosed asan Annexure Il tca_’;-'_‘--‘ o

3 ‘the anrd repnrt

. 5I]Cl 004, {Firm Regn. No. 3&#!313 E} a5 Statutow Aud[turs ‘of the Company tc hold nff[ce frclm'f '3.; S
-_the canclusion of this AGM, for a permr.f Df 5 Cﬂnsecutwe years until the conclusion, of 12th




19. TRANSFER TD RESERVES
‘Mo amount has been transferred to Generai Reserve Account due to the loss incurred by the

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017.

20, DEPOSITS
Your Directors report that the company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits

covered under Chapter V of the Act during the year undear review.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAE RESPONSIBILITY
- The Company does not fall under the criteria specified in Section 125 of the Act and hence no

. ' pelicy was developed by the company on Corporate Social Responsibility.

22, DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE {PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL} ACT, 2013,

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every

“individual working in company’s premises through various interventions and practices. The
'.Dcrmiznal'uj,.r always .endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from
d|5cr|m|natmn and harassment including sexual harassmant, :

"'-:3*faur Directnrs furl:her stated that during the year under review, there were no cases filed

'-pursuant te the Sexual Harassment -::f Women at Wnrkplace {Preventmn Prohibition and
L Reﬁressal] Ar;t 2013. : :

1'_1 23 ACKNDWLEDGEMENT

. Your Dtrectﬂrs pface on record their appreciation-for the co-operation and assistance received

. fram the Government Authorities, NHAI, 8ankers and Clients during the period under review.
.- Your Dtrectﬂrs also extend their appreciation for the valuable wurk rendered by the employees

' fc-r the deveiapment of the ui»::lm[;:ram,.r at varluus levels. :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
.. Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited

L

i "".':Ii'lacé:_ﬂ?derab'ad S : ; Srmwa aR uKamma ' Kamma'Ravi

- Date: 29/05/2017 . .. Director S Director
R e T . N 00022855 . ) ’ _. DIN:GZSBEESE
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ANMNEXURE |
'FORM NO. MGT 9 '
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017
{Pursuant te Section 92 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
{Management & Administration} Rules, 2014}

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

7 U45209TG2010PLCO68742

02.06.2010
CHHAPRA-HAJIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

:t Company Limited by Shares

{ Madhucon House, 1129/A, Road Ne.26, jubilee Hills,
1 Hyderabad-500033, Telangana.

No

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
1| Karvy Selenium ‘Tower B, Plot 31- 32, Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana-500 032.

. -Il. FRINCIFAL BLISINESSAETIUI']'IES OFf THE COMPANY:
{AII the: husmess activities mntrlhutmg _’LD % or more c-f the tutal turnover of the company

shalli::e stated:l

.| Execution Wﬂka
| development of 4 laning of
| Chhapra . — Hajipur Section of
‘NH-18 . from -km. {143.200 to |
.| km.207.200 In the state of | 421
“| Bihar under NHDP Phase-lll on '
'Dt:amgr_l BLild,”  Finance,
| Operate and Transfer {DBFOT)

100%

.| Annuity Basis
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.  PARTICULARS OF HOLIHNG, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

b

F) -

. Madhur.ﬁn ij'i-?u.:ts: l.irﬁlteﬂ
VCIN: L74210TG19390PLCO11114)

{CIN:U93000TG2008PLCOG0479)

2 Madhucon Infra Limited Holding Company 54.23
{U45200TG2006PLCOAS235)
3 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary 4558

V.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Erjuity Share Capital Breakup as parcantage of Total Equity)

A. Category-wise Share Holding

A, Promoters e
[ {3y totlan .
2} Individual/ o 20000 20000 0.03 0| 20000 20000 | 0.03 0
HUF : ' ) _
' -b} Central Gowt ! o 0 0 0 0 0 0 a
c} State Govt{s) 0 o .0 0 o 0 0 0 0
[ @) Bodies Carg. 64163500 0 64163500 95.07 64163500 [ 64163800 | 9957 | 0.
g1 Banks /71 0 0 0 0 0 o 6| .oai o
AT Any other o 0 0 0 0 0 ¢| o[ o]
| Total ;.7 64163800 20000 5413800 100 64163800 20000 64123800 { 100 0
- sharéhalding of - o R ' o
wo| | Promoter(4) . '
[T pupie
)| | Shareholding
| [ LInétrutions
A | -a) Mutizal Funds 0 0 D o 0 0 D Y
| [ oY Banks 7E7 0 0 0 0 0 0 ol 0
1.{-¢) Central Govt 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0
1 -d) State Govt[s)- 0 0 0 a o ol .- 0o oy
0 0 0 o 0 o ol o)
0 0 i o o o[ e] o
0 0 0 o g 0 B 0
: ur
v Q\@W EA"G’@
£ ]
a1 AT
[vi] %@b N i )
= SfE o -
O (\-".::.. -.
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h) Foreign
Yenture Capital
Funds

[

i} Others [specifi

Sub-total [B)(1):-

TR
Institutions

] Bodles Corp.

Ml Indlan

liy Overseas

b Individuals

1} tndivldual

i shareholders

hotding nomlinal
share capital
upto Rs. I lakh

oiolo olo

0O Q|4 oo

cio|laelolo

oio|o|lole

Q|| @ &

o

ocio|olela

o oo oo

p A I Y e ]

(=T --R R =] ]

1] Inghvigtual
sharehalders
holding nomnal
shara capital I
excessof Rs 1
lakh

) Others
(zpecify)

| Won Residesnt
| ndians

| Fwerseas

Corporate Bodies

Fareign Nationals

Clearing

Members

' Trusts |

Forsign Bu_:ldies -

DR

Sub-tatal {B){2):- -

Tetal Fublic -

~|:| Sharéholding
| {EENLBI2)

‘€ Shares held by
;| Custodian for ... .
. GDRS& ADRs - .
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Limited

1 | Nama Seethaiah 8288 E538 0
2 | Wama Prithvi Teja 3888 3288 a
3k Ravi 883 B85 0
Sllbiltuad 0.03 o 0.03 0
4 | 5rjSai Ram Nama BEE BER ]
5 | K Srinivasa Rao EHE I888 1]
6! M. Madhu 1560 0| | ) 0
7 | Madhucon Inira 34807500 54.23 5423 | 34807500 54,23 54,32 D
Lintited

§ | Madhucon Tl 20756300 4558 0| 29256200 45.58 0 0
| Highways Limited )

? | Madhucon Projects 0.16 0 100000 0.16 0 0

1 | Atthe I:egmrtmg of the year 01.04.2016 | 64183800 100 | 64183800 100
2 . Date wise - Increase ./ Decrease in :
Promoters Sharehc—ldmg durmg the year
specifying the ‘reasons for increase / MA | - - - NA -NA NA
decrease ‘(e.g. .-allotment ftransfer / : '
banis/ sweat equity etc. }
%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ&djﬁﬁt ?.’a‘f U TER L o0
o D) Shareholdmg Fattern nf top ten Sharehﬂlders
{Dther than Dlre'.cturs, Prom-::rters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs}
Holders of

There are ne tnp ten sharehnlders whn are Other than Dlrectc:-rs, Pr-::-m-::-ters and
GDHS and ADRS '
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E] Sharehnldmg Gf Dlrecturs and Kev Managerlal Persnnnel

Date wise Increase ! Decrease in Promoters 0 ¥ 0 0

‘Shareholding during the vear specifying the

reasons for increase  /decreaze {e.g.

allotment / transfer f bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

ﬂa'uri I(amrna

ARSI RO 00

Dete W|5e Increase f Decrease in Pmmnters .0 0
Shareholdmg during the year specifying the
reasons for - incredse  fdecrease [e.g.
. _alll::ltment £ rransfer / I::-unus,f sweat equity

PR T . ) RN E P
i ._I.J.J:IJ.,I.J.! 11:.’1

I.

- V) INDEBTEDNESS lndehtedness ef the Cumpan',r in:[udmg mterest outstandlngfacerued but not due
- -far pa',rmerlt

'-----The Detalls were stated in Scheduie 9 to 13 of Notes to Financial Statementsm---
1‘-I".I. REM_UNERAT[DN DF DIREET ORS AND K_E‘_'I" MANAGERIAL F_’ERSD_NNEL

The DISClﬂSlJrES under thls heed NIL

V. PENAI.TIES j' PUNiSHMENTj’ CDMPDUND[MG OF DFFENCES

"There are nn::- Penaltles, Pumshments and Cﬂmpuundmg Lewed{Prusecuted on any of the

.Dlrectors n‘ther eﬂ‘u:ers and an l.’:r.':-rru:lan';.ur durmg the y’ear 2[}16 1? Un these gruunds that this
headmg is net appllcable '

Chhapra-Hajipur Expreesways Limited

E

L

-Piace:__!—l_j,fderabad- R : SrinivasaRaeh(amme' © Kamma Ravi

Date; 29/05/2017 -~ . Director - .. 7 Director
B L - L DIN: 00022855 . ° DIN:02985836

Far and on hehalf uf the Buerd gf Directors, .




€% SURYANARAYANA UPADHYAYULA

¥ Practicing Company Secretary Plot No.836A,
Vivekananda Nagar Colony,
Kukatpally, Hyderabad-500 072
Tel :(040) 23067959
Mobile: 3848688151
E-mail: usnl939@vahoo.co.in

U R | L o

FORM NO MR 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR TIIL FINANCIAL YEAR ENDELD 3157 ALARCH 2017
Pwsum:t to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 9 of the Companties
- {Appoiniment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To

The Members

Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited

| N:'UQSEEQTGEUT PLCO68742

Registered Office: Madhucon House,

Plot Na.1129/ A, Read Ne.36, Hi-Tech City Road,

Tubilee 111lis, Hyderabad - 500033, Telangana.

[have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Chhapra-Hajipur .
Expressways Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”) a Subsidiary of
Madhucon Infra Litd (CIN U45200TG2006P1.C049235). The Secretarial Audit was
conducfed in a manner that provided me¢ a reasonable basis for evaluating the

.cqrporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, mimate books, forms and
returns filed and other  records maintained by the Company and alsc the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authoerised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, [, hereby report that inmy
opinion, the Company. has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2017 complicd with the statutory provisions listed hereunder

and also -that the Company has proper Board-Processes and Compliance-
‘Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

triade hereinafter:

Page 10f5
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Thave examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

other

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March

31, 2017 according to the provisions of -

i. The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder, (Not Applicable to the company during the audit period)

iii. The Depositorics  Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;. . "

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and KRegulations
made thereunder to the extent of Fofeign Dircct Investment (FDI), Overseas
Direct Investment (ODI), and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB); {Neot’
Applicable to the company during the audit period)

'v: The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
. Exchanige Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’): (Not-Applicable to the company

during the audit period)

"
b)

d)

The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisiion of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securitics and Fxchange Board of Tndia (Employee Et{]_ck Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Sccuritics and  Exchange Board of India (Issuc and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India { Registrare to an Issue
and Share Iransfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies
Act and dealing with client;

The Securities. .and Exchange Board of India {(Delisting of Eguity

Shares) Regulations, 2009;




h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

vi. The Other Applicable Acts & Rules (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and the rules framed thereunder) as
applicable to the company -

a) The Employces’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
b} The Payment of Grataity Act, 1972

c] The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

d) The Minimuem Wages Act, 1948

€) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

.-L have alse-examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

The Mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
- of India under the Companies Act 2013,

D&riﬁg the period under review the Company -has complied with the provisions of the. Ack,

Rules, Regudations, Guidelines, Sfundar.ds efc. mentioned above subject to the following
ﬂf}ﬁermhﬂﬂs :

The Company has not complied with the provisions of appointment of Independent Directors,
. pursuand o section 149 of Compandes Act 2013 vead with rule 4 of Conparies {appointinent
and 'Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. However Comparny is in the process of
Appointing Key Manageriaf Personnel and the Nowmination and remuneration Committee
will be constituted and the Existing Audit Commitiee will also be reconstifuted.

The Company is in the process of Appointing Key Managerial Personnel (Managing
Direclor/Manager/Whole  Time  Direclor/CEQ, Chief Financial officer and  Company
Secretary) Pursuant fo Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 rend with the Companies
(Appointment and remnuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

1 further report that:

The Board of directors of the Company has not duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Dircctors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
Changes in the Composifion of Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the act

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in Advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

e,k
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All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out
unanimoeusly as recorded in the minute of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensurc
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

In our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the exarninations
carried out by us and explanations furnished and representations made fo us by the
Company, its officers and agents, I report that the Company has complied with the

© provisions of the Act, the Rules made thereundér and the Memorandum and Articles
. of Association of the Company with regard to

a. maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;
b. closure of Register of Members;

c. - forms, returns, documents and resolittions required to be filed with the Registrar
of Companics, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or
other authoritics;

&, service of documents by the Company on its Membeérs, Debenture holders, Stock
Exchanges, Auditors and the Registrar of Compandes;

e. notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors;

. L. meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors and passing circular of

resclutions; .
. notice and convening of Annual General Meeting held on 22709/ 2016;

h. minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Commitiee -Meetings and
General Meetings;

i m
1

appr{jvéls of the Board of Dircctors, Committee of Directors, Members and
government atthoritics, wherever required;

J- appointment and remuncration of Statutory Auditors;

k. transfer and transmission of the Company's shares, issue and allotment of shares
and issue and delivery of certificates of shares;

1. Dividend was not declared and paid during the period of Audit.

m. transfer of amounis as requived under the Act to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund-{Not applicable);

n. Borrowings and registration of charges;

Page 4 of §
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~:Place: Hyderabad

o. repori of the Board of Dircctors;

‘p. investment of the Company's funds including inter corporate loans and

invesiments; :
q. generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.
I further report that during the audit period there were no specitic events/actions

except as menctioned above having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in

pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations; guidelines, standards, ete.

whﬂﬁ%\fﬁy
YANA UPEDHYAYULA

Date: 29/05/2017 - : = Practicing Company Secretary
: FCS-336-  CP-2768
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"~ M.K. DANDEKER & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Mo.185 (Cld Mo.100) 2nd Floor,
Pocnamailee High Road,
Kilpauk, CHENNAI - 600 010.

Phone @ +1-44-43514233
E-mail : admin@mkdandeker.com
Weh : www mkdandekear.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CH HAFRA-HAJIFLIR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

" Repott on the Ind AS Financial Statements

_We have audited the accompanying Ind . AS {financial statements  of EHHAPRA~HA.IIPUR
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED [“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheef as at 31st March 2017,

' the Statement of Prafit and Lass {includ; i R S
i Equity, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial

staternents”).

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Cempany’s Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in Saction 134 {5) of the
Compantes Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial stataments
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles genéra!hr accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, '

This responsibifity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records int accordance with the
prwisinn_s of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation andg
maintenance of aﬂequate internal financial controls, that ware operating effactively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting rEc.nrds, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the p_rmri'sicuns of the Act, the accu'unting and auditing standards snd
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules madé thereunder. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards en Auditing specified under Section’

143{10} of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requir plan and’
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MY, Dandeker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assursnce about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procadures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selectad depend on the auditors
judegment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financiai
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the zuditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are approprizte in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaltating the overall presenitation of the ind AS financial statements, :

We believe that the audit evidencs we-have-obtainetHssuffictent-amd Appropriaie 1o provide 3 basis

for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial staternents,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations Eiven to us, the
aforesaid Ind A5 finandal statements gfve Lthe information requii'ed by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generaily
actepted in [ndia including the Ind AS; of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2017,
its financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash
tlows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Az required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section {211} of section 143 of the Art, we enclose i the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 2 and 4 of the said crder. '

2. As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that:

fa) Wea have snught' and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur gudit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kapt by the Company
sa far as it appears from our examination of those books,

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statemeant of Changes in Equity and
tha Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements romply with the Accounting
© Standards specified under Saction 132 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the Companiies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

(e} On the basis of the written representations recefved from the directors as on 31st March
2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquaiffied as on

31st March 2017 from being appointed as a director in tarm ion 164 {2) of the Act.

i
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M.K. Dandeker £ Co.
Charterad Accauntants

(fi According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is in the process of
establishing its internai financial control aver financial reporting on criteria based on or
considering the essential components of imternal control stated in the Guidance Mote an
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoiting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of ndia.

{g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rula 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
Qur information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial : |
© " position. ' |

ii. The Company did not have any lﬂﬂﬁ&ﬁﬂ—mmetﬁ—}ﬁemd%ng—demcts TOr

which there were any material foreseeable lossas,

fii. There WEere no amolts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

* Iv. The Company has provided requisite disciosures in its Ind A5 financiai statements as to
hoidings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th Novembar
2016 to 30™ December 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company. Refar Note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For M.K.Dandeker & Co.,
(1CAI Reg, No. (006795}

5.Poosaidurai

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Membership No. 223754

Date:  May 29, 2017

M. 5, 102 M 10,
Iml Haa,
ponamlle Fyh F""ed.'l- £
Edpans, lhannzd-GOE 1

Place: Chennaj
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M.K. Dandeker & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

ANNEXURE - A TO.THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
{Referred ta in our Report of even tate)

1. a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including fuantitative
details and situation of fixed assets; -

b. The Fixed Assets have bean physicatly verified by the Management at regular Intervals and ne
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
2. -The Company is engaged-in the business of infrastructare development and maintenance and

hence clause 3 {ii‘}l of the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 relating to inventory is not

applicable

3. The Company has given advances to parties covered in the register maintained under section

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 towards execution of ongoing Engineering, Procurement
Construction (EPC) works,

4. According to the information ang explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and 186 of

the Companies Act, 2012 are romplied with in respect of loans, investments, guarantaes ang
securities given by the Company, if any.

5. The Company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Resarve Bank of India
arl the pravisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act
and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the Comparny.

6.  The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government ynder 5ub—sectidn {1}
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not g pplicable to the Company.

7. a. According to the information and explanations Elven to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of accounts, the Company has not generally baen regufar in depasiting
undisputed statutory dues icluding provident fund, employees’ state Insurancs, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other

statutory dues with the approgriate authorities though the delays in deposit have not been
serious, :

DEKERF
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M.K. Dandeker & Co.
Chartered Accountants

As at 31 March 2017, following are the undisputed statutary dues
more than 6 months from the date they became payable:

LA

Ith day of

payvable for a period of

Dutst dlngas

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Tax 43,78,543 | April 2016 to
Deducted September subsequent | an date of Audit
at Source 2016 manth Report
Building and Cther BOOW Cess | 52,889,558 | April 2013t | 30-Apr-14 Quistanding as |
Construction Warkers' iarch 2014 on date of Audit
Welfare Cess Act, 1996 Report
Buiiding and Other BOCW Cess - BE,35,898 [ April 2014 to 30-Apr-15 Outstanding as
Canstruction wWaorlkers" September an date of Audit
Welfare Cess Act, 1996 2016 Report
Employees Pravident Fund Provident 12,192 | August 20015 20th day of Qutstanding as
and Miscellaneaus Act, 1952 | Fund subsequent | oo date of Audit
. month Report
?rripluyees Frovident Fund Provident £3.249 | Agril 2016 to 20th day of Outstanding as
ahd Miscellaneous Act, 1952 | Fund September subsequent | on date of Audit
2016 marrth Report
The Bihar Professional Tax Professional 820 1 April 2013 to 15 Dutstanding as T
| Act Tax March 2016 Movember an date of Audit
and 15 April | Report
of respective
year
' The Blhar Frofessional Tax Professional 1,248 | April2016t0 | 15-Nov-1S | Outstanding as
Act Tax’ September on date of Audit
2016 Report

b.. According to the information and explanation
which have not been deposited on account of

year,

10, Based on the information and explanation given to us,
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has

8. The Company has defaulted in repayment of Interest ta banks during the year.

given to us, the Company has no statutory dues
disputes.

8. The meney raised by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which those are raised.

no material fraud by the Company or #ny
been noticed or reparted during the

\'|rr A
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M.K. Dandeker & Ca,
Chartered Accountants

1i. Acrording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
' records of the Company, the Company has nat paid or pmwded for managerial remuneration in
the current year. Hence, reporting under clause 2 (xi) of the Order does not arise.

12, The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause 3 {xii] of the Companies [Auditor's
Report) Order 2016 is not applicabie,

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on oyr gxamination of the
records of the Company, prior approval for transactions with related parties has not been
obtained as required under sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act 2013. However, details
of such transactions have been adequately disclosed in the IND As financial statements. as .. .
required by the applicable acmuntmg standards,

4. Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Lompany has not made any preferential allotment or private
piacement ol shures or fitlly. or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15 According to the information and explanations given to us and based en our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into dny non-cash transactions with

- directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is net
applicahla,

16. The Company Is ot reguirad to be regislered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, '

For MLK. Dandeker & Co.,
{ICAl Regn. No.0DD6795)

Data:  May 29, 2017

TIE KERS 3. Poasaitlurai
L, Partner I
for 1BE, 154 Ho 30, Y '

Tl Tl (- Chartered Accountants

Place: Chennai el
Membership No.223754
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Chhapra - Hajipur Expressways Limited

Balance Sheet as af Maich 31, 2017

P
P W

\ B As at March 31, 2017 | As at March 31, 2016| Asar Apl 1, 2005
Parliculars MNote
Armonnt{€ ) Amount (T ) Annaund ()
ASSETS
T, Mon-current assets
a) Property, Plant and Erjniprnent 1 [LR23.020 1514973 1,832 4500
¢l Intangible assels 339 5088 B850 |
i) Teaze Eeocivable 3 8,071,150,564 A3 101,055 &, 766,958,135
&) Financial Acsets
i] Ei-:curit}f DNeposits 4 4,500 45000 4500
[) Dreferred tax assets (net) - - -
g Cther non-currcal assets a FF1 4695 511 230,000,321 36,130,121
A 9.(044,474, 366 70 015938 7,114,943, 756
2. Current asgets
&) Invenlories, - - -
b} Financial. Assets
1) Cash and band: batances ] 26,606,564 R, 537,235 15,199,308
Hrioas ) - - -
¢} Other curront assets 2 11,601,455 3,362,144 - 6,511,150
E 38,208,014 4,139,410 21,710,436
TOTAL A+E 9,082,772, 380 7.711,155.357 7, 136,650,212
BEOLTTY AND LIABILITIES
EOUITY
a) Eqeity Share capiial ¥ a4, 838000 647,838, 000 647,838,000
b} Other Equity A A72 5T 478 583,451,363 B3n 163,016
C 1,114410475 | 1,335,209,383 LISLO01,016
LIABILITIES R
1. Mon-curtent liabiliics
a) Financial liabilities )
B} Borrowings 9 7832158583 6,0853,357,950 5,092, 892,048
1] Chhers ERE] 205,016,248 177,706,045 165,220,919
b Prowdsicns 11 103,557 85,113 FE,IHT
¢} Deferred Lax Habilities {net) - - -
d} Other non-gurrent Habilitics 1z - - -
D 7HL1,275 TR 6,267, 120,108 3,558,191, 748
2 Cucrent Jiabilities
) Financial labilities ]
i) Trade payables 13 50d#, 121 432 7RG 432 733
iy Others 1n oR45,153 10,144,982 6,047,240
b} Other current Labilities iz Tt 357820 B8, 106,415 B0, 170.620
¢] Prowisions n 2800 25,756 12,433
dy Currend {ax Hakflities (met) - E -
E 127,083,113 108,715,886 OF 463,448
Total Equily and Liabilities C+D+E 0,082, 772,580 7.711,155.357 756,650,212
Commitments ) 1%
Oiher notes [oeming part of accounts 19-35
Significant accounting policies 37

As per our report attached
M.E.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accauntants

Fiemn's Registralion No.; D087
bry the hand of

SMOCSAIDURAL
Partnor
dembereship No.: 223754
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 20-hlay-2017

Wz 184, [ M 130,
Jail TRor.
Pusmamdlae lygh 1220,

o T it B P

A, sl _'_'_,.-f_'-'ljfn 3 -
f ‘0 Place: Hyderabad
Dale: 29-hfay-2017

For and on behalf of the Board

of CHHAPRA- HAJIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

P_ M Dhn - (2985838
’ il M — —

(AGM - Finance and Accounts)

E.
Dlirert:
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Chhapra - Hafipur Expressways Limiled
Statement of Profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2017

As per our zeport affached
M.E.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Acconntants
I'irin's Registration No.: 0006795
by the hand of

S.POOSAIDURAIL
[Fattoner

Membarship Mo.: 2237534
Mlace: Hyderabad

Date: 29-May-2017

of CHHAFRA- HAJIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Director

Chn - 0022855
Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 28-May-2017

For and on behalf of the Board

= -

K.SRINIVASA RAD

Directo

in - (2935835
R [ (I

[AGM - Finance and Accounis)
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Particulars Note As af March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Amouat (T ) Amount (€ ) |
REVENUE |
Fevenue from Operativns 14 496,728 516 153,275,684 |
Construction conkracl rovenue i5 791,320,595 160,550,536 ‘
Other income - - .=
Tuotal Revenie A 1,288.049 51 616,132,220
Construction contract EXPCIISCE 15 707,330,595 160,856,530 !
Operaiing exponses - = E
Employvee benefit expenses - -
Finange costs 16 731,868,491 767,369,430
Administration and other expenses 17 156,207 307,899
Tatal Expenseas B 1,614,343, 693 248,533,971
Profitf(loss) before tax A-R (226,296,182} {(312,401,654)
Tax Expensc:
Current tax
Adjustoent of tax relating to earlier periods - -
MAT credit entitlernent - -
Deferred tax - -
|Profitiloss) after tax for the year (226,296,182) (312,401,654}
Prior period adjustments - -
Prafit far the year -226,296, 142 ~312,401 654
Other Comprehensive Income 21,099 145,726
Nature
Tncome-tax effect
1) Reclagsitiable to profit or loss in subssquent perdods
it} Not reclassifiable to profit or [oss in subsequent periods 21,009 145,726 ;
Tofal Comprehensive Incorns for the year (225,275 ,083) (312,255,928)
Earnings pet equity share (Basic and Diluted) {3.53) {4.87)
Face value per equily share 10,00 100K




Chhapra - IIajipur Exprecsways Limited
Cash Flow Stalement as on March 31, 2017

&, No. [Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As al March 31, 2016

Amount (T ) S Arwooant (T )
A |Met profit / (loss) before tax and exlraoedinary items (226,277 955 (312379418}
Adjurtrnent for
Drepreciation and amedlisation expensc -
Interesl exparse Fr: BaR 4] FO7.369.43% |
Intercsl inocoms -
Operating profit befors working capital changes 496,540,512 454,990,023
Adjustments for:
Incroase f (ecrease} in other non-cuerront financial liabitites 37310202 485127
increase f {Decrvase) in long term provisions 17,544 7932
Increase / {Decrease) in rade pavables 5,215,338 -
Inerease / (Decrease) in othor cureent financial liabilitites (2492, 4239) 3,293,722
In¢raase f (Decrease) o other current liabilitites o 13.451,414.0. - .7,035 703
Tnaresse f {Decrease) in short term provisions 3,254 12,901
{Increase) f Decreaso in other non cacrent financial assols - -
{Errenerse - BerTers T T T T T T P RS {155, 405.620) 110,039,800
[Increase) /1 ecrease in other current asscls (8,299,261) 3,208,368
{Imerease) / Decrease in Lease Reosivables (1285,049,511) (016,132, 220)
Net cash generated from/fused in) operating activities {579,458, 607} {30,157,934)
Direct taxes paic {net of sefunds) - -
MNet Cashiused in)/generated from Operating Activities (370,458,607) {30, 157,934}
B |Cash flow from investing activities )
Turchase of fived asscts {21.500)
Sale of fixed assets - -
Toberest received - -
MNet cash (used in)/generated fram investing activities {21,550) -
C  |Cash flow from finsmeing activities '
Proceeds from issue of capital
Procesis from Non Current Borrowings 1,255,447,729 402,465,302
Proceects from NHAT Loan 251,352,905
Procoeds feom Unscoured Loan 3,407 298 e, 70,000
Interest paid {722, B68.451) (THF.362,439)
MNetf cazh {ueed inlgenerated from financing activities HI9,339,441 104,795,863
Met increase ¢ {decrease) in cash and ¢ash equivalents (A+3+C) (60,140, 66} 71,637,529
Cash and cash equivalents as al the beginning afdhe year B6,837.235 15,199,306
Casit and cash equivalents as at the end of the year I 26,696,569 8,837,255

Motes:

2, Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances,

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as sof out in the Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow staternents

2. Previous vear's flaures have been regrouped /reclassified wheraver applicable.

AE per pur report attached
MIEDANDEKER & CC,
Charteved Accountants

Iirm's Registration MNo.: 006755
by the ha Df

S.POOSAIDURAIL
FPartnar

Membership No.: 223754
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 29-May-2017

For and on behaif of the Board .
of CHHAPEA- HAJIFUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

K.SRINIVASA RAD
Director

Din - DOO22E55

Place: Hyderabad
Daber 29-bay-2017

Din - 02085836
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(AGM - Finance and Accounts)
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Chhapra - Hajipur Expressways Limited

Notes forming part of Accounts

14 Kevenue from operabions

Pargionlars 2016-17 2015-16 -
Amount (€ ) Amount (¥ 1
Operating revonus 496,728,516 455,275,684
Total 496, 728,516 455,275,644
15 Construction Contact Revenue/Fxpense
. 2016-17 2015-1i
I'l
| atticulars Amount (T ) Amount (¥}
| FoadWorlk 791,320,995 160,856,534
Total 797,320,995 160,856,536
- 16 Fimanice ciosts ) )
: 2016-17 2015-16
Farliculars
Amount (¥ ) Aok (€ )
Interest on Service Tax 1,254 9
Intcrest om TDHS 1,512,732 11,734
IND AS Adjustrnent {Finandial Asset) 718,545,908 764 758 185
IND A5 Adjustment {Tpfront Ies) 2,805,337 2,540, 508
Tatal 722,868,491 767,569,439
17 Administration and other expenses
icul 16-17 15-
Tarki 20 2015-14
Amount (T ) Amuounk (€ )
Eent, Rates and taxes 8,845 729
Filing Tee 340 21,116
Conveyance 14,845 727
Oifice Maintenance 47927 118,342
Professional Fee 80699 151,475
Mizcellancous expensas - 9510
Tolal 156,207 307 899
(@) Professional fees includes Auditars resuneration (including seroice fax} as follows:
' 20146-17 2015-14
FParticul
arensars Amaunt (T} Amnount {%)
al.As auditor 50,6599 57,250
b} For tavation matters - -
<) For comparny law mattors - -
) For other setvices - -
Total B0,G99 37,250
Compaonents of Other Comprehensive Income
The dizaggregation of changes to OCI by cach type of feserve in cquity is shown belaws:
Churing the vear ended 31 March 2017
Other resetves
. Retain ings ] I
Particulars ed earning (speafy nabhure) Tota
Amount {T) Areount () Amount (¥)
Retneasurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit 21,009 ] 31,099
plans
Reclassified to Statement of profit and loss - - — -
Total 21,099 Hgs

18 Capital Cornmitments
The Company has an amount of T 46,23,60,987 /- (Previous year: T105,85,24,2230- ) cantract
capital account as at Match 31, 2017.and T 1,38,31,815/- (Previows Year T1,38,31,815/-} tow
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Chhapra - Ilajipur Expressways Limiled
MNotes farming part of Accounts
19 Covporate Informmatian

20

paj

Chhapra - Hajipur Ixpressways Limited was incorpurated umder the Companies Act, 1956, on 02nd iy of June, 2010 as a
Special Purpose Vehicte for Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Translor of 4 laning of Chhapra - Hajipur section of NH-
19 foom kan 143,204 to ke 207 200 in the state of Bihar on Annuity basis for a concession period of 15 years (2.5 years of

construction period and 125 years of oprrating peciod),

This contract was awarded by Nativnat Highway Authority of India. The Company shall hand over the Project Highway
lo NMATD on cxpiry of the Concession Period. The Concession Agreemont, on execution, will entitle the Company to
receive g fixed sum of anmuity every & months, in atrears, starting from the date of .commencement of cormmereal

operalinng (COE) from MEAL .
The Company has not earned any inenimefineurred any exponditura in freeigin curreney during the year. (resmdne pear;

ML

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Fmplu}ee benefits":

-} Defined benefit plans: - :

4a) The Company operates gratuity plan Lhwowgh a brust wherein every emplovee is entilled 10 the benefi equrva]ent to fillecn days
salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Lhe same is payable on lerntination of service or cetirengent whichever is

earlicr. The bemefit vests after Hve vears of conlinuous service, The fund is managed by LI

b) The amounts recopmised in Balance Sheel are as follows:

Gratuity plan Compensated abscnees
. Ac at March 31,| As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March a1,
Particulars
2017 2016 20iF 2046
Amount (¥ } Amount (£ ) Amount (£ ) Anaount (¥ )
A} Prescni value of defined benefit obdigation
= Wholly funded 104,552 - 26,416 -
- Wholly unfunderd -
e 552 - 26416 -
Less : Fair valuc of plan assets - - - .
Amgunt to be recognised as liability o
{azsat) 106,532 26,416 -
BY  Amounts reflected in the Balanee Sheet
Liabilities T0E,552 - 26416 -
Assrts - - - -
Met Liability / (asset) 106,552 - 26416 -
<) The amounts recopnised in the Statement of Profit and foss arc as follows:
ratuity plan Compensated absences
Particalars As al March 31| As at March 31, | As af March 21, | As at Mar.'ch 31,
2017 2076 2017 2006
Amount ( } | Amownt (¥ } | Amount(® } | AmounifT }
1 Current service cost 14,244 - 595
2 dnterest on Thefined benefit obligation 6,996 - 1,954
3 Expocted retutn on plan assets
4 Actuarial losses/(gains) {2,837 - {353)
From changes in demographic asswmptions
From changes in financial assumptions
5 Past service cost - - - -
6 Actoarial gain/{loss) nol recognised in books - - - -
7 Adjustrnent for carlier years - - - -
Total (I to 7) 19,103 - 1926 -
1 Amount included in "employes benEdll
expenses” 18,103 - 1,956 -
I Amount included as part of "finance coses” - - - -
Tatal (I + I} 19,103 - -
Actual retumn on plan assets - - -




Chhapra - Hajipur Expressways Limited
Motes foxming part of Accounls
dy LEifect of defined benefit plans on the amaunt, timing and uncertainity of entity's future cash Mows,
¢y T he changes in the present value of defined honefit obligation representing reconciliation of npening and closing
balances theresf arc as follows:

Gratuity plan Compensated abzences
Particalars As al March 31,7 As at March 31,{ As af March 31, ] As at March 31, |
‘ 2017 2016 2017 2016

Amount (T ) | Amount® ) | Amount(¥ ) Amount{¥ ]

Opening balance of the present value of defined

benefit oblizgation E7.44% - 24,420
Add: Current service cost 14,944 - 545 -
Add: Interest cost ' 6,956 - 1,954 -
Add: Contribution by plan participants
AEmployer 0 o = e -
iy Emplayee - - - -
Addf{less): Actuarial losses/{gaing) (28273 - {533 -

Less? HNenehits paid

Add: TPast service cust - - - -

Closing balance of the present value of defined

bonefit obligation - 26,416 -

£) The major categarics of plan assets of the fair valuc of the total plan assets are gs follows ;

Ag at March 31,| As at March 31, | As af March 31,
2my 2016 2005

106,552

Particeelars

Investments quoted in active markets
Cash and cash equivalents
Unguoted investments
Total - - -
22 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 23 "Borrawing Costs”
Borrowing cost capitalised during the year T Nil (rrevious year : N7l ). The capitalization rate used to
determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is 10.45%
23 Disclosure of zegment information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Oyperating Segments”
The Compary is engaged in the business of construction, operation and maintenance of Toll road prujects on a Build
Operate Transfor basis in a single business segment. Hence reporting af operating segments docs not acise, The
Compatty does not have operations vutside India, Hence, diselosure of geographical segment information does not

ariso.
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Chhapea - Hajipur Frpresswags Limited
Wates [otning part of Acconnls

ad List of ralated parties

24 Disclosure of related parties / related parly iransactions pomsuani {o Ind AS 24 "Kelated Party Disclosures”

Ulkimaie Holding Company @ Madbucom Profecls Limited

Hulding Compans “adlmeon Infra Timdted

Follow Subsidiaries - Wadlnrcen Tell Highwavs Limdted
Fanchi Exprrvseways Timited,

Barasat- Erishnagar Expressways Timiled

K. Srinivasa lRac

?(ey Managrerial Parsonnet:
: B Seethaiah

b} Diisclogure of pelated party fransaclions:

Paxticulars

201417

2015-16

Amount (€ )

Amotmt (T )

Al EPPC COST
Ukltimate Helding Company
Madhurcon Projects Lindied
B] Muebilisation & Inlenm Advance -
Ullimate Holding Company
“adlmeon Prajects Limibed

T 2,044

149,240,804

[29, 702 548

33,476,550

ClHRalention Muney
Laie a5

Limake Holdiser Company
Madhuoim Projecls Limited
[t Reimbursement of expenses chasged by
Ultimate Iolding company
Madbucon Prerects Tiniled
Helding company
Madbuicon Infra Timited
F) Reimbuesemant of expenses changed from
Ltimale Holding company
Wadhuean Projocts Timited
Holding company
Madleen nfea Limited
F) Ulility Shifting
Ultimate Holding company
Madhugon Projects Limited
G) Unsecured Loan
Ultimate Holding company
Madbucon Projects Tindled
Hulding company
Madhuweon Tndfra Limited
Fellow Subsidiarics
Moadhucon Toll Highways Limibed
B) Fellow Subsiidianes
Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways imiled
Ranchi Expressways Limiled

37,310,202

1,202,936

4,107 533

196,010

5407 208

5,668,901

5,04F7, 205

& A85,127

S854601

2B 214

o, L1000

L&d,A00,400
95, 100, R
210, QN 00

730

954, 745,00

FO5,433,250

o} Autunitik due o amd dive froon related parties{net}:

Arnpunts due (holfFrom

-

Particulars Asat As el
As at March 31, 2017 Aa at March 31, 215

Ultionafe Holding Company

Madhucon Projects Limited =7 358685 B8 825,977
Holding Company

hadbhuocn Infra Lind bed =1,427 208 739 -1 423,101,206
Fellgw Subsidiarias

Madhueon Tollways Livnited 49.50,00.000 49, 50400, 410

Barasat-Krishnagar Exprossways Limited ~q,534.140 -4.h34, 149

Ranchi Expressways Limited -2, 0, 00K =2,000.000

d} Terms and eonditions of teansactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from refated partles aze made on terms equivalent Lo those that prevail in arm's length
lransactions, Outstanding balances at the year-end are nnsecured and intersst free and scttlement ooours in cash,
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables melafing ke amounts
owed by related pasties (31 March 2006: INR Nil, 1 Apell 2015; Nil). This assessment s undortake 7
hrough examinitg the Gnancial posidon of the related party and the markel in which the relat

e} There is no provision for bad and doubtful debts 1o related parbies with regard to eutstandin
epense recognlred inrespecl of bad and doubtiul delits due fram related partics.

———— LT Jr el e e




Chhapra - Hajipur Expressways Limited
Notes forming part of Accounts

25 Disclosure pursoant to Ind AS 17 “Leases”
The Company has nol acquired any asscls either under Finance lease or under Cperaling tease, Henoe diselosures)

pertaining to Ind A5 17 - "Leases" arc not applicablo,

26 Disclosure pursnant to Ind AS 33 "Farnings per share”
Basic and Diluled Harnings per share (KI%S) computed in accordance with lnd AS 33 “"Earnings por share”,

B 2001617 2015-18
Farficulazs
Amgunt () Amount (€}
Basic and Milubed

Profit after tax as per accounts (%) A (226,296,182))  {3T12.401.654)
Weighted average rumber of shares vutstanding E &4, 183,800 . £4,183,800 |
Basic and Diluted EFS (%) A/B {3.33) {1.867)
Face value peor equity share {3 100000 1(0.0K]

27 Diselaguares as per Ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Cun'ﬁ.ﬁgeﬁ.t. Liabilities and Contingent assets

al Nalure of provisions:
Dot aire ,

Cof Cslimaiion, it

a) the Company has o prosent ablipation as a resull af a past uvent,
b] a probalbile oulllow of sesourves is expecled to settle the obligation, and
¢ ihe amaunt of Uhe obligation can be reliably estimated.
Reimbursement expected in rospect of expenditure required to sellle a provision is recognized only when it is wirtually
certain that the reimbursement will be roceivard,

Contingent Liability is disdosed in the case of
a] A present abligation arising fram a past cvent, when it is not probable that an autflow of resources will be reguired

to zettle the obligalion _ r.
b) A possible ebligation when ne reliable estimale is possible and

¢y & possible obligation arising from a past event unless Uw prodsbility of outflow of resources is remole

Contingent Assels are neither recognized, nor disdosed, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asscis are
reviewed at each Balance shoet date, '

2B Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 11 - "Censlruction Contracts” Ampunt ()
a) Armount of conteact reverme recognised in the year: F91,320,995
by Apgrepate amount of costs incurred and recagnised profits (less recognised lasses) to date; 791,320,995

2% Disclosure pursuanl fo ind AS 38 - " Intangible Assets™

Intangible asset Useful Life | Amotiisation method | Wternally generated or
n ¥
Angl tn years) used Arquirad
Siraight Linef 3
Specialized Soft 3 Avrquired :
A Remaining useful life e

30 Disclosure as per Ind AS 1- "Presentation of Finaneial Slaleirents”
For the purpose of the eompany’s capital management, capita? includes issund equity capital, and all other equily reservos
attributzhle Lo U equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of fhe company’s capital management is b maxita the
(Tnd A5 T requites the company to make quanlilative and qualitalive disdlosures regarding ohjectives prlicies and processes for
managing capital, Also, if comparitive amounts are redlassified, natmre amount and reason to be distlemad and not just fhe facl of

reclassification.)
531 Details of Specifird Bank Notes held and transacted during the period 08-Nov-2016 {u 30-Dec-2016 provided in Lhe

table balow;
i) inaki
Particulars SBNgs er Denomination | o
nobas
Cponing cash in hand as on 09-Nowv-2016 - . 1,141 1,141

(+] Permitted receipts - - -
{-) Permitted payments - - -
{-} Amount deposited in Banks - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30-Dee-2016 - o e o o 1,141
The amount disclosed as ‘permitted receipts” in other than SBNG denote the net 1o ;
collection through cash made. Irrespective of the denomination in which the amou i? 'ecé‘ft}%mﬁ'ﬂ-ﬁ%"' ;
was relurned as change to the users, the amount disclosed will contain only the net g lﬁﬂw&é’ tg__g-’gmpm}r

as tol] collected through cash. e
ol Mo
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Chhapra - Hajipur tapreasways Limifed
Maote : AL First lime adoplon of Ind A5
Traosilion o Ind AS

Thige are the company”s finst standalone financial slalements prepared in accordence wilh Ind A5, _
Ther accounting polivivs sug out in note 37 have been applicd in preparing the financial slalements for the year ended March 31, 2077, 1he comprarative
darmation presented i these financial staterments lor 1he year ended March 31, 2006 and in the progaratios of an wrening Ind A5 balance sheel al
April 1, 2015 {the compamy’s date of transition). In praparing its opening Ind AS balance shest, the company has adfusted lhe amounts repored
proviously in iTnancial staterents prepared I accordunce with the aceounting standards notified onder Companies LAocounting Slandards) Fules,
2MNE {3 amended) and olher relevant prowisions of the Act (previeus CAAF or Indian (A AP or 1ICAAT).

A Exemplions and exceptions availed

In preparing these Ind AS financial statemenis, the company has availed cettain exemplions and excephions  accocdance with Tnd A3 101, as
explained bule. “The resulling difference betwaan the carryping values of B wsscts and liabilities in the financial statemenls os at the ransition date
under ind AS aul previous GAAT have been recopnised directly in squily frelained eumings ar annther appropriste cabegony of equity. This nobe
explains the adjuslments made by the company in restaking ibs previoos GAAP fnancial slalomuents, including the Bulunee Shest as al April 1, 2015

and the financial staternents o8 at and for the year ended Mapch 31, 20146,

Ind AS aptional exemptinns
1Feemed cost

The company has cluecded G messore cevtain Boms of prupcrr:_-, plant and pqu:pmenl al Eair wlm at ﬂ-:e dabp {:.| Lransition te Ind AS. Hence at the
dalé of transibion to Ind AS, measured as per the previous SAAT sl use the same as deemed cagl s on the date of translicn to Ind AS

Tnd AS mandalory exceplions
Esfimales

The vompamy’s eslimates in accordance with Ind &5s af (e date of transiben ta Ind A5 shall Be consistent with estimates made Far the same dale in
accordance with previous GAAT {after adjustments to reflect any difference n aceounting pelicies), wnless there is objeclive vvidence that those

ostimates were in ermor

Ind A5 uslimates as at 1 Aptl 2015 oo consislent with the vstimates ee at he same date made in contfermily widh paniinm AL

L. Beconsiliabions between previous GAAT and Ind A5

Tnd AZ 101 requives the company ba recancile equily, todal comprebensive income 2nd cash Bows for pror periods, The following tabies reprosent

the reconciliations from previons CAAT ko Ind A,
Peconciliation of equity aa al date of transition (April 1, 2013)

Chhapea - Hafiput Expressways Limited
Effocts nf INTD . Effvcts of LNT?
Particulars Note | TOMATfAg Trancition | AP MR 1GASE | aneition | T12ch 37, 2016
Amount (¥ ) | Awmoenb ¥ ) ool € § | Awount (€ ) | Amount (X ) | Aweunt LY
ASSETS
MNan-turremt aarats
a) Praperty, Flant and Bquipment 1 1,552 45 - 1832450 T.B14.973 1,514,973
b} Intangille assets . 850 - @860 085 5,088
¢} Lisase Receivahle 3 AMAE2LINT [ TAFEARRLART | 6766 IREERR | SFTLSARO2G | 1,386, TREAN] FAR3,10L 055
d) Loans % 20107, 867 2%, 103,341 48010 175,130,871 176,126,371 4 5011
e} Other non-cemmE assets 5 - (346,130,121) 346, 13,12¢ - (234, 321 256,000,321
A 5053, 571463 93,820,707 | 7114045766 | 545097050 | 325172021 762,015,038
Current asaets
a) Fmartcial Assets
iy ©ash and bank balances & 15,199,350 - F5,192.306 ERH37230 - BE.837.235
ity Loans 142,243,243 142,243,248 - #0221 471 60,221,471 -
) Gt current assets 5 1,294,663 (3,216,437} 811,150 1234663 742 AT 830 1
B 168,737,217 137,026,761 21,710,456 148,353,359 B3, 950 00,129,419
TOTAL A+B | 3213309690 | 1076653468 | 7136656717 | 9,097,201,328 | 1386135971 ] 7711155357
EQUITY AND LIAFILITIES
EQUITY
&) Equity Share capital LI A41,838,000 - f41,535,000 641,838,080 - £, HAE 000
b) Gther Bquity o BANLAEL)| (9480936971 Lawlndlle (210325 ARerLets] 346156
632,947 319 (548,053,657} 1, 181,001.0106 632,627 677 (MOL67I6ES)| 1333200543
LIABILITIES
Maon-current Labilities
) Finateial lisbilibes
i} Borrowings W0 | FABEILISD | 1496017502 | 502802648 | ROTEE7ANLT | 1920214567 | 5005357.950
ii} Cther financlal Habilities 11 165,220,414 - 163,220,979 178,706,044 - 171,746,046
b) Provisions 1r 78181 - 78,181 84,113 B 113
<) Beterred bax liabilities (net)
" 7,355, 109,260 | 1436917502 | 583819748 | 8187404676 [ 1970314367 | 6,267,150,102
Current liabilifies
a) Financtal liabilities b= |
i} Trade payables 14 432,733 - 432,733 : P\"“W\\ 432,733
it} Other financlal abikities 11 . (6,847,240 6,517,240 ;.m% 0,140,952
b) Gther current Jiabilities 13 L7523 | 134,656,503 40,170,620 WREa 07 ) oz H8106,415
&) Pravislons 12 12,855 . 12,855 SE! T, raneaicEal €14, 25,756
E 225,265,111 127,769,665 07 463,444 »Hmmfﬂ{ﬁ 208,705,506
R TED AT
Total Equity and Lisbilites CHEMD} 6 215,509,680 | 1L076,655468 | 7.136,656,217 | 9097,291,328 | 386,135,071 | 7.711.135.557




thhapm - Hajipur Expressways Limited

Mote & ' )

Under Indian GAAP, transaction ¢osts incurred in connection with borrowings are capitalised under intangible sssets under
development. For transttion te [ndAS, such transaction costs are adjusted with the fair value of the borrowings on initial
recognition. Interest on the borrowings is acoounted uncter the Fffotive Interest Rate method (EIR). Accardingly borrowings
as al 31 March 2015 have been reduced by  1,48,97,014 . Canscquently an amount of ¥ 148097.014 has becn derecognived
fram intangible asset,

Nate B

The Comparty has received Interest free Unsecured Loan of T 160,98,10,150/- from their Haolding Company Madhucon Tnfra
Limviled tili FY: 2001415 & % 46,67,00,000 in Fy: 2015-14 which is repayable at the end of Concession Poriod.

Note C
Adjustmenls to retained earnings and other comprehensive income has been made in accordance with Ind A, fur the above

mentioned line items. o o
" Recorcilistion of Stitemient ol Profit and [oss for the vear ended March 31, 2016

Lffects of INL: AS
Particulars Nate TGAAN Fromsition Ind As
Amomt () Amount (¥ ) Amount (T )

REVENTE

Fevenuc from Operations T4 . {455, 275,684) 455275684

Construclion contract revorne 15 - (160,856,5336) 160,856,536

Crther incame - - -

Tokl Revenue A - {616,132,220) |  £16,132,220
EXFENSES

Comstruction contract expenses 15 . {160, 856,536)  T60.B56,536

Operating expenses - - -

Emploves banefit expenses - - -

Einance costs 1a 11,743 (767 357.650)|  TEF369.439

Administralion and other expenses 17 307 HE - 307,899

Total Expenses B 219,642 (928,214,237) 928,533,874
Profit/(loss) before tax A-B {319,642) 312,082,012 | (312,407,658}

Tax Expense:

Current kax - . -
Profit/(loss} after tax for the year {319,642 {312,400,654)
Prior period adjustments - ' -
Prefit for the year -319,642 =312, 400 65
Other Comprehensive Income - 145,726

Mature
Income-tax cflect
1) Recassitiable to profit or loss in subsequent periods
i) Not reclassifiable to profit or loss in subsequent periods 145,726
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (319,642} (312,253, 928)
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) {0.005) {4.57)
Face value per equity share 10,00 10,00

Note A
Under IGAAP, addition to cardageway is capitalised at cost however under IND AS same has been booked as expenst and
Eevenue is recognised by adding a suitable margin in the cost and such revenue is capialised as Intangible Asset,

Note B

Under Ind AS, provision for resurfacing is recognised based on discounied value of estimated expenses 10 its present vatue at
8 pre-tax rate while in IGAAP, such discounting was not allowed,

Actuarial GainflLoss is reelassified to Other Comprehensive Income.

Note C

Under IND AS, Upfront cost paid on loan is amaortised over the period of loan,

Fansanglz2 Hig HDE%.
%-?, “izang, Chznna - HEC A
& i
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Chhapea - Hajipur Expressways Limited
Naotes forming part of Accounks
33 Diisclosure Under Appendix B o Ind A5 11

Descriplion of the

Significant lerms of the amangement
arrangement

Juriuodd of the Conoesst
Periud uf the Concession A period of 13 vears from Appaointed Datef 27 - (7 - 207111,

Rermneration Annuities to be paid Semi - Annually by NILAL

Conditions of Pricing | As por nodification issued by NHAT lrom time to Hme.

Tnfrasteuctiiee ceturn at | Being DBFOT projoct , the project assets have o be transferred 2l the ond
the end of the of cuncession perind

concession poriad
Ohbligalions & Rights the Coneessionatre shall at its own cost and expense unulertake, comply
. with and pecform; in addition toand notin derogalion of its obligationz

Construction, operalion
and maintenance af the
Toll Road on Design,

clsewhere setout in Concession Agrement.
The: Concessionaire has the rights o callect the Toll frovn wsers of the Toll

and Transfer basis Changes in the Any changes in the arrangement like change in the Shareholding cte
arrangment occutring  |needs approval from the NHAL

during the periad
Clasuiflcation of Service |The setvice atragerment has been dassificd as a Service Concessian
Arrangerocnt Arrangement [or a PT'T project as per Appondix A to Ind AS17-
Construction Conlracts; accordingly construclion revenues and expenses
awe avcounled during construction phase and inlanglble asset is
recopnised Wowards rights to charge the usets of the system,

M |I¥selousre in pursnant to Ind AS 107- Financial Instruments:

341 Financial Risk Management
The company's aclivities expose it to varety of financial risks ; market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The CcoMmprany's

focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markels arid seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
perfertnance. The Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for the cstablishment and oversight of the Company's risk
managetnent framework. The Board of Directors has established a risk management policy to identify and analyso the risks
faced by the Company, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor msks and adherence to limils. Risk
management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s actvities. The
Board of Directors oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk
managernent framewiork. '

34,2 |Market risk

The market risk is the risk that the {air value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes
in markct prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: aurrency risk, intorest rate risk and other price risk.,

34.21Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency tisk is the risk that fair valuo or future cash flows of a financial instrwment will fiuctuate because of changes

i forefgn exchange rats,

The company is not exposed to foreign currency rick as it has no borrowing in foreign currency.

34.2 Hlnterest rate risk

Intorest rate risk is the risk thal fair value ot future cash flows of a (nancial instrument will MTuckuate because of changes in

market interest rates,
The Interes! risk arises to the company mainly from Long term borrowings with variable rates. The company measures risk

through sensitivity analysis,
Currenitly, Lending by Comumnercial Banks is at variable rale only, which is the inherent business risk.
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The company's exposure to interest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 |
| Zenior Dabt from Banks - Variable rate borrowings 924650161 5,939,162.367 E,ESD,{]D[],UU[}J

Sensifivily analysis based on average oulstanding Senmior Debt
Impact on profit! loss after tax

Intercst Rate Risk Analysi
e 8 Yo FY2016-17 | FY 201516
Tnerease or decrease In interest rate by j
E Lo s . L&,414,534 14,395,953
25 basis point

Note: Profif will increrse in case of decrease in Inlerest yate and vice versa
31.2.5 Price risk
Frice risk is the cisk that the fair voluce or future cash fiows of a Anancial nstiment will flachsate bocause of changrs in

fnarket prices (other than these arising from interest rate risk-or-eurrency risk),- -
The company s not cxposed to any price risk during the year,

The company measures risk theough sensitivity analysis,

34.2.4 Ligudity risk o
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounler difficulty in meeting obligations associabed with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asscts,

The company is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payahles.,

The company measuees tisk by forecasting cash flows.

The Cotipany’s approach lo managity liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will ebways have sufticiont liquidily
to mect its liabilities when dug without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to Lhe Company’s reputation.
The Company ensures that it has sufficient fund to meet expected operational expenses, servicing of finandial nbligations,

The following are the contractual maturities of (inancial labilites

: Carryin
As at March 31, 2017 - Amrjunf uple 1 year " 1'-. erea b5 2-Syearm S years
|Mon Derivative Financial Liability
Senior Debt from Banks FIR2460,Me | 1274200000 S10.700,000 | Le4BA00M0 1 3,749,765,016
Frade Payables 5,648,121 5,643,121 - - -
Other financtal iabilities 200,016,248 205,016,248 - - -
T
Carryin
As at Macch 31, 2014 - IYIng upfo 1 year 1-2years 2- 5 years = 5 years
Amount
Non Derivative Financial Liability
Senior Debt from Banks 5,939,162, 367 - 1,274,200,000 | 1736,5900,000 2928062367
Trade Pavables 432 733 432,723 - - -
Crhet financial liabilities 171,706,046 171,706,046 - - -
] Carrying
Asal 1, 2015 1-2 2-5 5
s al Aprii 01 Amount upa I year ¥oarms years > B yearg
Non Drerivative Financial Liability
Senior Debt from Banks 5,580,080,000 - - 2.370,700,000 | 3,209,300,000
Trade Pavables 432 735 432,733 - - -
Other financial lizhilitizs 165,220,919 165,220,010 - - -

24.2.5 Credit risk

discharge an ohligation.

Credit risk is the risk that ane party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss fo

® e o, f
The company genetally does not have trade receivables as collection of toll income coind ~,§, [{;;ﬁ?ﬁﬁ.mﬂn v ¢

through toll - plazas. The company has other receivables primarily from government an
management believes that the comparny is not exposed to any credit sk,

2nd Ehar.
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S
3a.1

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value hierarchy
As at March 31, 2007

%2,155, ld K2 10
2nd Faw,

Soamanalgn lyh Faail.
ilpzuh, Lignzzi-Bi0 L1

I

Financial Aszset & Tiabilities Measured at Mote Tewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FV - Recurring FVM No. (%) (T} L) ¥

Financial asset measured at FYTIL I
- Inves{iments in Mutual Funds - - - - :

Tela) of Financial Assets - - - -
Fmam:'ml Assel & Lrab.ﬂmes:. Measurcd at Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 4 Total
Amprtized cost for which fair vaiues are ta

. Mo, T X () T}
be diselosed
Finaneial Assels

l.oans & advances 4 - 4,504 - 4. 5400

Total of Financial Asscls - 4,500 - 4,500
Financial Tiabilities

Term Loan from Banks g - 7032,158,583 - 7632 158,083

Cvher Mon Currenyt Financial Liabilities n - 2O016,248 - 209,018,243 |

Other Current Financial Liabilibes 10 - 9,848,153 - 4,848,153

Trade Payables 13 - 3,648,121 - 048,121 |

Totzl of Financial Liabilities - | 7,836,671,105 - 7,856,671,105 | -
Asg at March 31, 2016
Financial Assel & Liabililies Measureid at | Nute Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FV - Recurring FVM™ -~ Mo, %) (T ) T (T)

Financial asset measured at FVTPL

Investments in Mubaal Funds - - - -

Total of Financizl Assels " - - - “ b
Fmanc.j,al Agset & I.Iah'llltles:-hieasured at Note Level 1 el 2 Level 3 Total
Amortized cost for which fair valuies are to

. No. %) {T) ) X))
be disclosed
Financial Assets
Leoans & advances 4 - 4,500 - 4 5001
Total Financial Assets - 4,500 - 4,500
Financial Liabilities
Term Loan from Banks o - 6,095,357, 950 - a,095,357 250
Other Non Current Finaneial T.iahilities 17 - 171,706,046 - 171,706,045
Other Current Financial Eiabilities 10 - 10,140,982 - 10,140,982
Trade Payalblcs 13 - 432,733 . 432,733
Total Financial Liabilities - 6,277,637,711 - 6,277,637,711




As at April 1, 2015

36,3

Financial Asscl & Liabilities Maasured at | Mote Level 1 Level2 Lovel 3 Total
FV - Recurring FVM Na. %) (¥} x) {T )}
Financial assel measwred at FVTIL
Trrestments in Mutual Funds - - - -
Total of Financial Assets - - - -
Financial Asset & Liabilifice Measured at
. ) . Nata Levell Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Amortized cost for which fair values are to|. S R o o
_ . No, ) @y () (€ §
be digclosed
Financial Assets
Linans & advances £ - 4 50 - 4 B{H]
Total of Financial Assets - 4,500 - 4,500
Financial LiakiltHes
Term Loan (rom Banks a - 3,692, 592,648 - 5 6R2 852 045
Crther Non Current Financial Liabilities 10 - 165,220,914 - 165,220,919
Oher Current Financial Lisbibities 10 . 0,847,240 - 0,847 2400
Tradoe Payables 13 - 432 703 - 432,783
Tatal of Financial Liabilitics - 5.865,393,510 - 5,865,393,540

There are no transler Delween level 1and level 2 during the year
The company policy is to recognise transfers into and ransfer out of fair values hierarchy levels as at
56.2 Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair vaiue

I RCEL AT o P Tt o i

Financial asscls and liabilities Valuakion Inputs

Financial assets

Security deposit & other loans and
advances Tnrome Cash flow
Financial liabilities.
EBffective rate
Term Loan from Banks Fwoime .
of borrowing
Oher financial kabilites Tngome Cash flow
Asset pledged as security
Particulars Mote | AsatMarch | AsatMarch |Asat April 0,
nn 31, 2m7 31, 2016 2015
Amount (T ¥ | Amount (T ) | Amount(T )

Maon Financial Asset )
Property, Plant & Equipment 1 1,623,020 1,814,573 1,832,450
Intangible asset 2 339 5,085 9,850
Leagse Receivable 3 867150566 | 7,383,101,035 | &,766,%64,855
Other Financial Asset 4 4,500 4,500 4 5001

Financial Asset
Cash and (ash Equivalents 7 26,696,568 86,837,235 15,159,304

TOTAL 8,699,672,994 | TAT7LTR2E52| 6,754,014,94]
%h_.,:}p:.\mEHEE& N
A Mo 105, i3 100
Al f:!:ll?::_ » I
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ot - 1/
St .



Chhapis - Hajipur Expressways Limited
Wotes accompaying the Financial Statements for Lhe year ended 31 dMarch 2017

37
e |

B2

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

The Crmnpany’s finandal statements have been prepaned in accordance with the provisions of fhe Companics Act, 2013 and
the Indian Accounling Standards {tnd AS) notified under the Companics (Indian Accountdng Standards) Rules, 2013 issucd
by Minisiry of Corporate: Affafrs in respect of seclions 123 read with section 469 of lhe Comparniss Act, 2013 (18 of 20113) and
sub-section (1) of Secton 2104 of the Companies Act, 1986 (1 of 1956}, Uple the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
prepared 1s finandial staternents in accordance with the requirements of previvas GAAY, which indudes Standards nolificd
under the Companies {Accounking Standards) Rules, 2006, These are the Company™s fiest Tnd AS financial Statements, The
dlate of ransition to Ind A% is 01 April 2015, Reler Nole 32 A for the details of first ime adoption exernptions availed by the

Company,

Hasis of arcounbing

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis (ollowing, the historical wost convention, burther, the guidance nokes/

- . ane PRRTCR R AT =
AR e B H 2 et = S imamae t " LR R T File 7 G I ]l ] [
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except to the extent where compliance with other statatory proamulgations override the same reguiring a difforent treatment.
Fair value measurements are calagoeised into Level 7, 2 or 3 based on lhe degree to which the inpuis to the Fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inpuds Lo the fair valoe messurement in ils cokirety, which arc

descrbed as [ollows:
* Level 1 inpurts ane quoted prices (unadjusied) In active markets for identical assels or liubilities that entity can aceess at

measutrement Jate
* Level 2 inpubs are inputs, olber L quoted prices included in Level 1, thal are observable For the assel or liability, either

directly ur indirectly; and
+ Lewvel 3 inpuls are unobservable inpubs for the assel or Habilisy

Uae of eslimates

The preparation of the finandal stalemends in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and
assumplions considered in the reported amounts of assets and lisbilikes {including contingent liabifities) and e repoeted
meome and expenses during the year. The Management bolieves that the estimates used in preparation of the fnancial
staternenks are prudent and reasonable. Actual resolts could differ due to these estimates and the dilfercnees Betwesn the
aclual results and the estimates are recognised in the pedods in which the resnlts are knosen 7 raaterdalize. Eslimates include
the useful lives of property plant and equipmenl and intaagible fised assets, allowanoe for doubtful debtsfadvances, future

obligations in respect of retivernent benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing obligations, [air valoe measurement ele,

The financial statements of the Compary have been prepared in accordance with the significanl accounting polides duly
considering Management's assessment of varons mallers relating to arbitration/termination proceedings, fahure projections
etr, which are significant ti» the Company and the final outeome of these matters, incuding legal/eontractual interpretations,
where applicably, could have a significant lmpact on the financial statements and the Management's evaluation oof thy same
15 very critical and fundamental to the preparation of these financial slalemeats.

Fresenfabtion of financial stalemenls

The Balance Sheet atd the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presenled in the fornat preseribed in Schedule T
to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"}. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the taquirements
of Tnd AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, The disclosure requirements with respect tu ifems in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Frofil and Loss, as prescribed in Schedule I lo the Act, are presented by way of notes foriing part of accounts
along with the other notes reguired to be disclosed under the notified Acovunting Standards.

Amounts in the finandal statements are presented in Indian Rupees in line with the requirements of Schedule UT. Per share
data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimal places.

2nd Faaee,
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ars

7.6

Cach and bank balances

Cash andd bBank balances also mchude fixed deposils, margin money deposits, eannarked halances with banls and ethor hank
balasews which have restrictions on repatriation.

Cash flow statement

Cadh flow staterment is propared segregaling the cash flows frum operaling, mvesting and Rnancing activilies. Cavh fow
from operating activilies is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the nel profiti{loss) is adjusted for
the ellects of;

i. changes during the period in inventories and operatin g receivables and payables and transactinms of a non-cash natuee;

i mem-cash ilems such as depreciation, provisions, urrealised loreigm marrency gains and losses, and undistribuled profits of
associates; and

iit. all othet iterny for which the cash ellects are investing or finanging cash flows,

The cash fluws from operating, invesling and- financing activities of-the Company ate segregated based om the avaiable

information, Cash and cavh equivalents (including bank bafances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flowr Slatement,

T

a7.8

Property , Plant and Equipraent (FFE]

Property Planit and Equipment is recogmnized when H s probable that futere economic benelils associated with the flom will
ffosw t the Company and the cost of the item can mwasared reliably, PPE is stated at original cost net of taxfduly cradits
availed, il any, less acounudated depreciation. For gualifving assets, berowlng custs capitalised in accordance with the TN
AB 33,

For transition to Ind AS, the carrving value of FPE under previous CAAP as on U1 April 2015 is regarded as its cosL The
carrying value was original cosl leas acmmmialed deprecdation.

Administrative and other general averhead expenses thal are specifically attributable 1o construclion or acquuisition of PPE or
bringing the FPE to working condition ate allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the PPE.

Property Planl and Equiprment not ready for the iitended use on the date of Lhe Balance Slhnet are disclosed as “Capital worl:
n-progress”.

Depreciation on assets have been provided on straight-line basis as pet nselul lives specified fnthe Schedule I of the
Campanies Acl, 2013, Deprecistion on addilions [ deductions is caloulated pro-rata [rom / fo the mondh of additiony /
deductions.

Assets individually cosling less than Fs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the vear of purchassa.

Revenue recopmition

ay Revenue is recognised based on nature of activily when consideration can be reasomably measured and there exisls
reascmiable cerainky of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and is reduced [or customer reiurng, rebates and other similar allowances.

b Interesl Income s recognized on time proportion basis taking into account Lhe amount owtstanding and applicabile
intercst rate,

c} Revenue [rom annuity based projects is recognised in the Statement of Frofit and Loss over the concession period of the
respeclive prefects based on the implicit rate of relurn embedded i the projected cash flosws. Such income s duly
adjusted for any varlation in the amount and tming of the cash Aows in the peried in which such variation goours,

d} Dividend Fneume is recagnized when the right to receive is established,

«] Frofitfloss on sale of investments is recogmised at the time of actaal salgfredemption,
[} Other items of income are acommbed as and when the right bo recsive arises.

s 1R, 10005 Mo, 200,
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Notes rccompaying the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

370 Tmtangible asseis

{i} Annnity Profects {Unconditional right to reccive eash from Authorily)

Tinconditional right to receive cash obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, Tepresont the righ! 1o
receive specifivd armatly amounts from the Nalional Highways Anthorily of Tndia ("WHA1Y) during the concession period in
respect of Build-Operale-Transfer (TBOT"Y projects undertaken by e Groop. Sech unconditional right by receive cash s
capitalised as Hnancial assets upon indtial recopnition at the cemulative cmstruction costs pFlus obligation towards negative
grants and addillonal congession fee pavable to National Highways Authority of India {"WTIAY WState aunthorilics, if any. Tl
the completion of the project, Lhe same is recognised under intangible assets under development. The roverme from toll
collectionfother income during the comstruchon perind is redvced from e carrving amount of intangible assets under
development,

Fhe cost incuseed for work beyond the original scope per Contession agroement {rowmally relersed a: "Chanpe of Soope”) is

capilalized: as intangible assct under development as anid when incurred: Refibijrseticne in redpect of suth avotmis [rom [

NHALStak authorilics are redwced from dhe Dntangible assets to the extent of achal e [ay

b} Other iidangible agnets

Spedialized software is amortized over a period of three years on straight ine basis from the month in which the addition is
Fre-nperative expenses including adminislrative and other general overhead expenses that are direclly atribrlable to the
tevelupment or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalived as parl of cost of the intangible assels.

Lntangibile wwsels Weat are ot ready for the intonded use on the dake of Ihe Balanee Shwet are disclosed as “Inlangible assets

e duvelapment”,

Amaorlisalion on impaired assets i provided by adfusting the amorlization charge in the remaining periods 50 as Lo allocate
e avsels” revised carrying smouttt ever s remaining useful Life.

3710 Govemment prants

Girvernment grants are recogmised when there iu reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the cendifions
attached o them and the grants will be recvived. Govemnment grants whaose primary condilion is that the Company should
purchase, construct or olherwise acquite capital asscks are presesbed Ly thedtetitg them from fhe carrving value of the
asscls. Covermment grants in the nature of promoters” contribution like nyvestment subwidy, where no repayment is
ordinarly expected in respect fhereof, are Lreated ay capital rescrve.

2711 Employee benefils

Employes benefits include provident [und, superanmuation fupd, employee slad insnrance schems, graluity fund,
vompensated absences, long service awards and pust-employment medical benefits.

i} Shorf ferm employee benefils

ALl employee Benefits falling due whaolly within twelve months of rendezing the servior are classified a5 short term
emplovee benelils. The benefits like salaries, wages, short lerm compensated absences ete. and the eapecled onst of
bonus, ex-gratia are recognised In the period in which the emplovee rendes the related servics,

The undiscounted ameunt of short-term empleyee benefils expectad to be paid in exchange lor the servioes rendered
by employess are recognised during the year when the employoes render lhe service. These benefits incude
performance incentive and compensated absenoes which are expected to occur within twedve months aller the end of
the perind in which the employee renders the related service,

The rost of short-term comnpensafed absenors is accounted as under -

{a) in ease of acenmulated Loinperuated dbsences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of
future compensated absences; and

{b} in casc of non-aconmulating cotnpensated abseoces, when the absences ooour,

13, 126, 1013 Ma, it
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Chbapra - ITajipur Expressways Limited
Mates iccompaying the Pinancial Statements (or the year ended 31 March 2017

i) Post employment benefits

(a) Trefined contribution plans:
Defined Cantribution Flans: The Comnpany’s abligation tu employer’s provident fmd is a defined contribution .
The contribution paid/payable is recognized in ke period nwhidh Lhe eanployee renders the refaled service,

(B Defined benefit plans:
The Company’s obligalion towards gratuily is a defined benefil plan.
The prresent value of the ubligation under such Defined Benefit Flans is determined based on actuanial valuakion using
fhe Projected Unit Credit Melhed, which recognizes cach period of servioe as giving rise 1o additional uait of employer
benefit entiflenent and measurey each unil separately to build up the final vhligation.

The obligalicn is measured al the prosent value of the estimated fulure cash. fows. The . discount rabes used o
determining the present valee of the obligation nnder defined benefit plans, is baved on the markel yiclds on
Convernment sccunities as ab Lhe Balancs sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the Leems of related
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Actuarial gaing and losses are recognized in the Other Cornprehensive lncome.

Eemeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, he return on plan assets {ercluding net intercst) and any
thange i the clfect of asset ceiling (if applicable) are recopmised in other eoenpreliensive income and is reflected
immedialely in retained earnings and is nut reclassilied to prafit & loss,

The fnterest element in the sctuarial valualion of dofined benelit plans, which corpriges e foplicit tnteres) cost and
e impact of changes in diseount rale, s classified under linance cost, The balance charge Is pecogmised as cmplovee
Bumefib exponses n the Staternent af Profit and Loss,

In case of funded plans, (he fair value of the plan azsets is reduced feom the gross obligation under the defined benefit
plans to recopnize the obligation on a net basis. -

Cizims or Insses on the curtailment or settlement of any dufined benefil plan are recognised when the curtailment or
settlemnent nocurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense at the catber of the plan amendmenl or curtailmenl and
when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or terminatinm benefits,

fiii) Other long tetm employec benefits:
The abligatinn for long term employee benefits such 25 long term commpensated absences i recogniced in the same
manner a5 70 fhe case of defined benefit plans as mendioned In (i) (b) abowve,

iv} Termination Benefits
Terminalion benefits such as compensation under Voluntary Rekitement cum Pension Scheme are recopnised a3
expense and a liabilily is recognised at the catlier of when Lhe Company can no longer withdraw the alfer of the
teemination benelit and when the entity recogrises any relaled restructuring costs.
Barrowing cocts
Burrowing costs inclde inlerest caleufated using the effective interest method, amortisation of ancillary oosts incareed and
exchange differonces arising from forefgn curreney borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjusiment to the
inlerest cost. Cosls in commection wilth the borrowing of funds b the exlent net directly related to the accuisition of
qualifying assets are charged to Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loas. Borronwing costs, allocaled 1o
and ntilized for acquisition, construction or production of guakifying assets, pertaining {o the period from commencement of
activilies relating to construction / development of the qualifying assct apr o the dale of capitalization of such assol are added
to the rost of the assels. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during extended periods when active development activily on the qualifying assets is interrupled.
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Leasos

Crpecating:

Asgeby acgquited on leases where o significant portion of tisks and rewards of ownership are retained by Ehe lessor are
dauified as operaling leases. Lease remtals ave charged 10 Statement of Profit and Loss on accraal basis,

Assels leased out under operating leases are capitatised. Rental income is recoghized over fhe lease ero.

Finance:

Agsets acquited under leases whers the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are Uansified ay
finance leases. Such assuts ary copitalised al the inception of the lease at the lower of e (air valie or the present value of
minimum lease payments and a lability is created for an squivalenl amount.

Farninygs per share

The bagic and dilated earnings per share are computed by dividing the net proft allributable to equily sharcholders for fhe
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vear by the weighled average mumber of equity shares outstanding during Lhe vear. The number of shares used in
computing dilubed camings per share couypists U weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share, arul also the weighted average number of equity shares which would have been issued on the conversion of all
dilukive potential equity shares,

Pitutive potential cquity shares are desmmed converled as of e beginning of the period, anless they have besn fssued alL a
tater dale. The diluted potental eqrity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares boen actually
issued at the average market value of the outstanding shares. in compuling dilutive eamings per share, unl} potential equity
shares that are dilutive and Lhat cither reduces eamnings per share or Increase loss per share included,

Tuses un ingome

Tax on incoene for the qrrrent peried s determined on the basis of Laxable ineome and tax credits eomputed -t accordanoe
with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and based on the expected ontoome of asscssments/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognized on fiming differences belween the accountng income acounted in Anancial skafements and the
taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rakes and laws cnacted or substantively cnacted a5 o the Balance
Sheot date.

Deferred tax asset relating to unabsobed depreciationbasiness losses and losses under the head “eapital gains” arc
recogrised and carried forward te the extenl there is virtial certainty thal sufficiert future taxable inceme will be availalde
against wihich such deferred tax assel can be realised,

Provisions, conlingent liabilities and confingent assets

A provision fs recognised when the company has a presemt obligation as a result of rast evenls and it is probable Lhal an
oultlosw of resources will be required o settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable cstimate can be made. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the corrent best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in
notes in cage of o present obfigation arising from past events, when it is not probable thal an cutfow of resourees will be
reqquired to settie the obligation or a presenl ohligation atigivy from past ovents, when no reliable estimate {s possible Lhe
Motes. Contingent Assets are nelther recopnized, nor disclosed,

Insurance claime

Trsurance claims are aooounbed for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the exten that the
amounl recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable bo expoct ullimate collection,

Operaling Cyele

Based on the nalure of peoducts [ aclvities of the Company and the normal Gme bebween a
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cyde as
classilication of its assets and lighililics as current and non-current,
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3719 Clains
Claims agginst the Company not acknowledged a3 debts are dischosed wader contingent labilities, Claims made by fhe
company ate recognized as and when the same i approved by he respective authorities with whem the claiim is Todggead,

3720 Commitents

Commitments ane future labilities for contractual expenditure, Commitments ave classified and disclosed as {nllows:
(it Fstimabed ainount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

i) Uncalled tinbility om shares ang offier investoents partly paid

ity Funding relaled commitinent to subsidiary, associate and joint venhore companics and

{iv} Other non-canceliable comumitoents, i any, b the extent they are convidersd matedal and selevant in the opirdon of ]
Chher commitmonts relaled Lo sales/procorements snade in the normal course of business are not disclosed fo avoid excossive
delails,
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